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PREFACE

This information booklet serves to introduce prospective members to the International Honor Society for Professions in Technology, Epsilon Pi Tau.  Further, it provides background on the history, purposes, rituals, and activities of the organization.  Epsilon Pi Tau is an organization dedicated to those in the profession who are leaders and potential leaders in the field of Technology.

The membership of Epsilon Pi Tau is spread throughout the world.  It is, therefore, increasingly important that the Honor Society act as a common bond for those scattered members.  Communication and understanding are of vital importance to the perpetuation of the Honor Society’s ideals.

It is for this purpose that this booklet is submitted to the members and candidates of Epsilon Pi Tau.

Oswego, New York

Original booklet prepared by Vernon A. Tryon, November 1958

Extensively revised by Kenneth Pucker, October 1972

Revised by Dr. Vincent C. D’Ambrosio, February 1980, November 1987, September 1990

Revised by Richard Bush, February 2002, February 2006

INTRODUCTION

Much of the character of Epsilon Pi Tau was expressed by Berton Braley in his poem, “The Thinker.”  In the hope that it will create the appropriate atmosphere for what is to follow, it is presented here.

Back of the beating hammer

  By which the steel is wrought,

Back of the workshop’s clamor

  The seeker may find the thought;

The Thought that is ever Master

  Of Iron and steam and steel,

That rises above disaster

  And tramples it under heel.

The drudge may fret and tinker

  Or labor with lusty blows,

But Back of him stands the Thinker,

  The clear-eyed man who knows.

Might of the roaring boiler,

  Force of the engine’s thrust,

Strength of the sweating toiler,

  Greatly in these we trust,

But back of them stands the Schemer,

  The Thinker who drives things through;

Back of the job the Dreamer,

  Who’s making the dream come true.

EPSILON PI TAU

Epsilon Pi Tau, Incorporated, is the International Honor Society for Professions in Technology.  In 2006, the Honor Society encompasses one hundred and twenty five chapters. Honor Society members are at work in at least eighty nations around the world.  International headquarters for the organization are located at Bowling Green State University, Bowling Green, Ohio. 

The Honor Society, Epsilon Pi Tau, is so named because those three Greek characters are the initial letters of the three precepts of the organization: Exatasis, Pragmateia and Texnikh.  Exetasis, or research, is emblematic of the search for truth.  The Honor Society seeks to foster, council, reward, publish and circulate the results of research efforts in the areas of its interest. Toward this end the Honor Society has published and circulated to its members many publications covering a variety of subjects of interest to the profession.

Pragmateia, or social proficiency, is the second precept of Epsilon Pi Tau.  The Honor Society endeavors to develop the social skills that its members need to become respected individuals in their profession.  They are admonished to place the professional and social needs of others above their personal interests.

The third precept of Epsilon Pi Tau is Texnikh, which represents the technical skill that is so vital to the success of individuals engaged in Technology.  Members are counseled to become attentive to the development and understanding of the skills and abilities that have enabled people to progress in the shaping of the physical environment to suit our needs.

These three precepts are symbolized in the organization's emblem, an equilateral triangle. The triangle ranks as one of the most important figures. It is the simplest figure that can be drawn with straight lines and without knowledge of the properties of the triangle,

the science of geometry would have been impossible.

At one time, the equilateral triangle was considered a sacred symbol. It was common in the Phoenician, Egyptian, Greek, and other ancient civilizations. Whenever an oath of importance was taken in the days of Pythagoras, it was administered on the equilateral triangle.

The unity in the constructive and stable qualities of TEXNIKH, PRAGMATEIA, and EXETASIS, the three concepts of Epsilon Pi Tau, is represented in this ancient symbol. It is emblematic of the philosophy of Epsilon Pi Tau as well as an insignia. Active members are eligible to purchase and wear this recognized and respected insignia of the Honor Society.

The colors of Epsilon Pi Tau are BLUE, WHITE, and GOLD.

· BLUE was chosen to represent skill - TEXNIKH.

· WHITE represents social and professional proficiency - PRAGMATEIA,

· GOLD represents the paramount goal of Epsilon Pi Tau, the eternal search for truth - EXETASIS.

To explore the conception and development of Epsilon Pi Tau one would need to go back to the school year 1928-29 when several graduate students at The Ohio State University observed the custom of meeting every Wednesday as a seminar group with Dr. William E. Warner, and Dr. Robert Smith.  At those meetings topics relative to phases of industrial arts and industrial-vocational education were studied.  Special attention was paid to research.  At one of the meetings the question of an honorary fraternity was raised.  A preliminary inquiry revealed that a number of such fraternities were in existence, their memberships being made up of teachers in industrial arts and vocational education.  After discussing the question at some length, the group decided that their purpose would best be attained by organizing a fraternity with a different professional emphasis than any of those then operating.  It was hoped that an organization might be formed which would become national in scope and take rank with the best educational honorary societies in general and other fields of education.

A smaller group, composed of Mr. E.L. Bowman, State Department of Education, Hartford, Connecticut; Mr. H.J. Davison, Detroit Public Schools; Mr. Orville E. Sink, Ball State Teachers College, Muncie, Indiana; and Dr William E. Warner, The Ohio State University, took upon themselves the task of working up a tentative organization.  Their consuming idea was to build carefully so that their efforts might lead to something permanent; something that those engaged in industrial arts and industrial-vocational education might consider worthy.

As a foundation, the group considered the main abilities which one must have to successfully function as a leader.  Those abilities were finally summed up in three main precepts; ability to do things skillfully, ability to cope with people, and ability to do research.  The precepts represent the philosophy of Epsilon Pi Tau.

Mr. Bowman’s experience in other organizations furnished the necessary background upon which to work, so the forming of the first draft of a ritual was made by him.  The ritual was first administered at a formal dinner meeting at the Faculty Club, The Ohio State University, on March 13, 1929.  Those present heartily endorsed the proposal and pledged themselves to the projection of the organization.  Alpha Chapter, located at The Ohio State University, was the first chapter of Epsilon Pi Tau.

On January 31, 1930, a chapter was established at Ball State Teachers College, Muncie, Indiana, which was to be known as the Beta Chapter.  Eleven men were initiated as charter members by a team from Alpha Chapter.

A meeting of the Alpha Chapter was held on the evening of April 3, 1930 when Dr. Frederick G. Bonser of Teachers College, Columbia University, was an honored quest of the Fraternity. Two candidates were accepted and initiated. Dr. Warner then presented Dr. Bonser with the first honorary key of the Fraternity. Dr. Bonser paid high tribute to the Fraternity and spoke briefly concerning its research aspect. Mr. Orville E. Sink then presented Dr. Stone with the second honorary key. Dr. Stone was looked upon as somewhat of a “God Father” to the organization, and it was with a great deal of pleasure that the members included him on the honorary list.

The following is a quotation from Baird’s manual of American College Fraternities, 1930 edition.

EPSILON PI TAU* An honorary fraternity in practical arts and vocational education was founded at Ohio State University, March 13, 1929 by E.L. Bowan, H. J. Davison, William E. Warner, and O.E. Sink. It’s purpose is to recognize the place of “skill” in practical arts and vocational education; to promote “social efficiency” and particularly to foster, counsel, reward and publish, and circulate the results of “research” efforts in the fields named. The Alpha Chapter was established at Ohio State University, March 13, 1929. A national fraternity is planned which will hold its conventions annually in connection with the American Vocational Association or the National Educational Association. The emblem is a watch key of triangular shape, bearing on each angle one of the Greek letters of the Fraternity, and along its sides the Greek letters, TEXNIKH, PRAGMATEIA, EXETASIS. The membership on August 31, 1929 was 29.

*Epsilon Pi Tau - The International Honor Society for Professions in Technology

Candidates for membership in Epsilon Pi Tau are carefully selected on the basis of their high scholastic attainment, their demonstration of participation and leadership in Technology, in the college and in the community, and their professional qualifications and promise.

There are three forms of membership: General, which is given to each initiate; Laureate, which is reserved for those who have especially distinguished themselves in the three ideals, and Distinguished Service, which is limited to members who have achieved national prominence for their achievements in the ideals and work of the Honor Society. 

On August 26, 1941, a meeting was held which included Dr. William E. Huss, Dr. William E. Warner, Dr. Orville E. Sink, Dr. Herber A. Sotzin, the national officers and faculty trustees, to plan the incorporation of Epsilon Pi Tau.  With the aid of legal counsel it was accomplished, making Epsilon Pi Tau an incorporated fraternity.

In 1945, The Board of Directors passed a by-law allowing women in the industrial arts field to become members of Epsilon Pi Tau.  Miss Lillian Tucker was initiated into the  Phi Chapter at the Oswego Normal School the following year and thus the Chapter was honored to receive the first woman in the country to achieve membership in Epsilon Pi Tau.

As dynamic fields of technology continue to emerge and develop, Epsilon Pi Tau has expanded its role to honor deserving members in the professions in technology. Originally the Chapters were located on the campuses of Baccalaureate degree granting colleges and universities.

The contributions of the Associate Degree granting colleges to the professions in technology have also been recognized for many years and the Code of Epsilon Pi Tau provides for worthy members from these institutions to be initiated into the Honor Society. In the 1995 revision of the Code, a further provision was made to establish chapters on the campuses of Associate Degree granting colleges. The Gamma Xi Chapter at North Dakota State College of Science is the first such chapter to be chartered by Epsilon Pi Tau. 

Further, in response to political, social and technological change, the Board of Directors established two additional vehicles for membership, primarily for practitioners. Consequently, a segment of the organization's membership is served through vital and contributing Field Chapters which are usually not associated with colleges or universities; another cohort is comprised of members-at-large who typically reside in the United States or Canada or in one of the 80 other countries of the world where chapters have not yet been established.

There have been only three Executive Secretaries in the history of the Honor Society; coincidentally, each was associated with an Ohio university when his service began. The first was the founder, Dr. William E. Warner, who remained associated with The Ohio State University. The second was Dr. Delmar W. Olson of Kent State University in Ohio and then of North Carolina State University. He then continued his service from Casper, Wyoming in retirement. The third, Dr. Jerry Streichler, established the International Office at Bowling Green State University where he served as a Dean and Professor. He continues as Executive Director from his San Diego home and maintains communications with the directors, trustees, members and the International Office in Ohio via e-mail, telephone, fax and during visits connected with his professional travels. These distinguished leaders have contributed much to the stabilization, growth, and development of the Honor Society. The Honor Society’s archives have been officially accepted and are maintained by the Center for Archival Collections of the William T. Jerome Library at Bowling Green State University. They contain a wealth of significant historical published and unpublished material, which has been produced by the men and women who have been associated with the Honor Society. Members and other researchers who demonstrate a need and use for purposes of research and advancement of the profession may access the archives through the center.

DR. WILLIAM E. WARNER

1897-1971

Dr. William E. Warner devoted a lifetime to industrial arts and the teaching profession.  He was the founder of Epsilon Pi Tau and served as its Executive Secretary from 1929 until his death in 1971.  Dr. Warner was the first person to earn a Ph.D. in industrial arts.


Dr. Warner’s leadership and of the idea of the General Shop or Laboratory of Industries program for the small school was phenomenal in its impact, for this development not only broadened the curriculum in industrial arts and added a new curriculum area to the school program, but it also created a demand for hundreds of new teachers in the depression era.


Dr. Warner was instrumental in placing many persons in teaching positions in a variety of important posts.  This was accomplished through his acquaintances and contacts made through travel to schools and colleges in most of the states in the nation.  It can be said that his home served as a national placement office.


Some of the documents which were outcomes of Dr. Warner’s leadership and promotional skills were The Terminological Investigation, The Ohio Prospectus, Industrial Arts – Its Interpretation in American Schools, and The New Industrial Arts Curriculum.  He was not only instrumental in establishing Epsilon Pi Tau but the American Industrial Arts Association (now known as the International Technology Education Association) as well.


Dr. Warner, who died on July 12, 1971, is widely considered to have been one of the most distinguished figures in industrial arts in the 20th Century.

HISTORY OF PHI CHAPTER
To appreciate the present position of Epsilon Pi Tau on the campus of the State University College at Oswego, one must examine what preceded it.  This necessitates going back to the early winter of 1921.  At that time, Dr. James G. Riggs, Principal of the State Normal and Training School, suggested to a few of the men students of the school that they organize a group whose objective would be the perpetuation of the memory of Dr. Edward Austin Sheldon, the school’s founder.  Accordingly, a few of the men met with Dr. Riggs at his home and discussed the formation of such a group.  It was decided to call the new organization Sheldon Forum as Dr. Riggs had suggested.

At first the aims of the organization were rather vague other than to perpetuate the name of Dr. Sheldon.  However, the second meeting held at the home of Dr. Riggs was in the form of a symposium, an open discussion about a common topic.  As a result of the meeting, Sheldon Forum became a sort of discussion and debating group.  Several debates were held with neighboring groups.  For the remainder of that year and for the next three years the organization continued as a discussion group.

In 1925 the Constitution and by-laws were revised and the organization became the men’s honorary society of the school.  From that time the Sheldon Forum was firmly established.  In 1931, the Forum made an attempt to become affiliated with Epsilon Pi Tau but was rejected because the industrial arts course was not degree-granting.  In 1932, the first four-year industrial arts course was installed but not until 1939 did the Board of Regents grant the Bachelor of Science degree.  Soon after the granting of the degree, the forum voted to petition* to become a chapter of Epsilon Pi Tau.  Dr. William E. Warner, the founder and first National Executive Secretary visited the campus in May of 1940 and initiated Sheldon forum as Phi Sheldon Chapter of Epsilon Pi Tau.  The advisors of the organization at the time were Mr. Gene Essex, Mr. Arthur Hauler, Mr. William E. Huss, and Mr. W. Virgil Nestrick.  Since that time the 

*The original copy of this petition is preserved in Penfield Library.  It is in the form of a bound volume and may be inspected at any time by the members of the chapter.  It includes a wealth of information and photographs that give a keen insight into the College of 1940.

chapter has been privileged to have Dr. Gordon O. Wilber, Dr. Robert D. Helsby, Dr. Paul T. Hiser, Dr. Vernon A. Tryon and Dr. Vincent C. D’Ambrosio as its trustees.  In addition, a number of faculty members have served as co-trustees and special advisors to various aspects of the chapter’s programs.


Over 1300 new members have been initiated into the Phi Chapter.  Probably the largest single group of initiates the chapter has seen to date was on December 10, 1977 when 42 new members were welcomed into the Phi Chapter.


Over the years, the Phi Chapter has honored many outstanding members of the college community.  The Phi Chapter has been honored to have fourteen of its members receive the Distinguished Service Citation.  Along with these members, fifty-five other members of the Phi Chapter have received the Laureate Citation from Epsilon Pi Tau.


For many years Epsilon Pi Tau took part in the Annual Founder’s Day and Honors Convocation. Founder’s Day was a program that was started by the Phi Chapter in 1923; the last time the chapter sponsored it was in 1969. Founder’s Day is now known as Quest and is held each April.


During the summer of 1972, Dr. Paul T. Hiser, Trustee, and Distinguished Service Member of the Phi Chapter, announced his retirement from the college and the trusteeship of the Phi Chapter.  That was a great loss to the Phi Chapter because of the efforts and contributions he made for the Honorary and especially for the Phi Chapter.  He was completely dedicated to the ideals of Epsilon Pi Tau and his dedication has been transmitted to the members through his work for the Honorary and his example.  Dr. Hiser has been greatly missed from the active affairs of the Chapter by all that knew him and who appreciated what he stood for in the profession.  Following his retirement, he continued to serve as the director of the eastern region of the Honorary until 1976.  Dr. Hiser remained active in the affairs of Epsilon Pi Tau and the International Technology Education Association until his death on April 25, 1990.  

Activities of Epsilon Pi Tau are of a professional nature.  Throughout the years, the Phi Chapter has presented many programs and workshops on timely topics in Technology.

In 2005, Epsilon Pi Tau joined the Association of College Honor Societies. This necessitated a name change from the International Honorary for Professions in Technology to the present International Honor Society for Professions in Technology.

SYNPOSIS OF THE INITIATION CEREMONY


At an appointed hour on the day of the Epsilon Pi Tau initiation, the apprentices report to a room adjacent to the initiation room where they are prepared by Hegemon for the ceremony.  The Honorable Basileus, the Chapter President, prepares for the initiation by seeing that the tables and chairs are arranged and the bars of the triangle are placed on the tables. 


At the start of the ceremony Hegemon presents the apprentices to Phylax who questions them about their desire to enter the Honor Society.  After establishing the worthiness of the apprentices, Phylax directs Hegemon and the apprentices to enter the initiation room.  Hegemon presents the apprentices to the honorable Basileus who accepts the report and directs the lessons of the ceremony to begin.


Historiographos first reviews the founding of Epsilon Pi Tau and describes the three cardinal precepts which constitute the philosophy of the Honor Society.  The precepts are expressed in the Greek words; Texnikh, Pragmateia and Exetasis.

Following the presentation by Historiographos, the Honorable Basileus introduces the first counselor, Texnikh.  Texnikh holds up the first bar of the triangle and explains that it represents skill of hand and eye.  He directs an apprentice to carry the bar to the table before the Honorable Basileus.


Honorable Basileus introduces the second counselor, Pragmateia, who holds up the second bar and explains its representation of social and professional proficiency.  He directs an apprentice to place that bar on the table of the Honorable Basileus.


The Honorable Basileus then introduces the third counselor, Exetasis.  Exetasis describes how the third bar symbolizes research, or the search for truth.  An apprentice is then directed to take the last bar to the Honorable Basileus and to link the bars together to form the equilateral triangle which is the emblem of Epsilon Pi Tau.


Historiographos is then called upon by the Honorable Basileus to explain the history and symbolism of the equilateral triangle and its meaning to the Honor Society.


The only portion of the initiation ritual that does not follow an established pattern occurs at this point.  The Trustee of the Chapter explains the meaning of some of the paraphernalia used in the ceremony and briefly describes some of the highlights and dynamic characteristics of the local chapter and the International Honor Society.


Honorable Basileus then conducts the final ceremony, wherein all apprentices repeat the Obligation.  Following this, the Honorable Basileus declares that all apprentices are members in full standing.  Membership certificates are presented to the new members at this point in the ceremony or this may be done later at a banquet if one is to follow.

ORGANIZATION AND ADMINISTRATION PLAN
ADOPTED FOR EPSILON PI TAU CORPORATION


During the early 1970’s, revisions were made to the administrative structure of the Fraternity (now an Honor Society) and the Code of Regulations which establishes the policies for the administration of the seventy chapters located in thirty-two states and two nations abroad was rewritten.  All chapters through their responsible trustees had an opportunity to suggest changes and approve the final drafts of the policies and regulations that became effective May 6, 1976.  Dr. Paul Hiser, Chapter Trustee Emeritus was Chairman of the Revision Committee and Editor of the Code of Regulations.  


The EPSILON PI TAU Code of Regulations serves as a Constitution for the EPSILON PI TAU Corporation as well as its individual chapters, and as a set of guidelines for the Board of Directors, Executive Secretary, and Chapter Trustees. The Code as it is now called was last revised in 2004.


The organization chart provided on the following page identifies the nature of the administrative structure and the personnel required to administer the corporation serving the International Honor Society.
EPSILON PI TAU, INC. ORGANZATIONAL CHART

Board of Directors

Regional Representatives

Region 1

 The Nations of Europe, the Eastern Provinces of Canada, the North Eastern United States

Region 2

The Nations of Africa and the Caribbean Islands, and the Southeastern United States

Region 3

All Members-at-large, the Canadian Province of Ontario, the North Central United States

Region 4

The Nations of Central and South America, the Canadian Northern Territory and Central Provinces, and the Central United States

Region 5

The Island Nations of the Pacific and Indian Oceans, the Nations of Asia, Australia, the Canadian Yukon Territory, Western Provinces, and the Western United States

For further information visit EPT on the web at http://www.epsilonpitau.org/
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